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Before dealing with individual shipbuilders, it
seems desirable to take a general view of the position at
Liverpool.

The south shore on the Lancashire coast was
the site of practically all the yasrds, and shipbuilding in
the days of oak and hemp was more picturesque and interest-
ing that it is to-day; then on the stocks could be seen
vessels in various stages of construction, some only in
frame, others with their hulls partly planked; occasionally
a craft would be almost completed and fully rigged, with
masts and yards in position, ready for launching.

Very noticeable would be the fragrance of new
cut timber, also the odours of ter, pitch and oakum.

Then the grinding of the saws would be heard cutting the
huge baulks of timber into the requisite sizes, while the
carpenters would be seen swinging their adzes and shaping
the wood, chop - chop - chop. The rhythmic blows of the
caulking hammbrs would echo again and again, all adding to
the exhilarating throb and feeling of life as the ship
took form, and it is not surprising that the men were
proud of their work as they gazed on the beautiful lines
of the vessel before she took her plunge imto the broad
waters of the Mersey, thence possibly to sail on all the
oceans of thc globe.

Tn addition 5o the men actually employed
building the vessels, o considercble number were busy as
block ond spar wnakers; then there were sailmakers, carvers
(who preduced such wonderful figurcheads), ropemakers,
painters and chandlers, all of whose services were needed
before the ship was ready for sea.

These British-built oak vessels were Very
strongly constructed and some cf them lasted a very long
time, in fact there are instances of them sailing the
seas Tor over 100 years.

Unfortunately, most of the builders' records
of the early vessels constructed at this Port have
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. . Ten years latcer iron ships were coming into
demand, and about 1860 steel was being employcd in their
construction, as it was lighter than iron, thus enabling
vessels so built to carry more weight.

Between 1815 - 1820, only a limited number
of small wooden paddle steamers were built, principally for
ferry services, but from 1820 to 1830, larger wooden paddle
steamers were constructed for the coasting trades to Ireland
and Scotland, etc. Screw propellers camec into use during
the next decade; on the other hand, paddles continued in

favour for many years. - o
It might be observed that when steamers first

came into use the shipowners made two contracts, one with
the shipbuilders for the vesscl and another Wlth-the"
engineers for her machincry, ond ons of the carliest firms
to make marine engines wac Fawcett Presion & Co-5 ot .this
Town, who are still in cxistence. — T |
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iron vessels. It appears the Liverpool Dock Trust (\g};ich
originally belonged to the Town, and was not a separ
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/Authority as now) would only gruant an annual tenancy of the
land for the yards o tne un,nbullderu, as with the rapid
expansion of the shipping using the Port, more docks were
nceded, 8o the yards were yf?aually taken away. Consequently,
about the middle of lust century, @ number of firms secured
sites on the Birkenhead sids of the Merscy and transferred
their activities across the water.

%RAYSON’SJ The family are said to have originally come
rom Whitehaven, and according to the late Mr. R. Stewart

Brown, Edward Grayson was & Freeman of Liverpool in 1747, and
three years later, when St. Thomas' Church, Park Lane, was
consecrated, he was onc of the first seatholderso

’ EBdward Grayson is stated to have commenced business
on his own account in 1858; in fact he was associated with

John Qkill in the building of H.M.S,VENUS, of 718 tons,
complutbd uaat year.

4 4

o] uhﬂt time '*vc"pool cnly possessed two docks -
the Cld Dock (coﬁstructel in 1715 and filled up in 1826) and
the Soath Dock (now rel &z 311thouss Dock).  The latter was
completed in 177 1.3¢ wora the dividing line, as one
portion of the beach waa cailed the Horth Shore and the other
the South Shors, and tns shipbuilding yards were situated on.
the 1atﬁere

‘The Poll Bock of 1761 describes Edward as a
carpenter. (the equivalent of a shipbuilders in those days),
living in Merse¥y utPGeu, while the Directory of 1774 shows
him as a shipwright, in Merscy Street, with a yard on the
South Shore,

- By 1781 the firm was Grayson and Ross, and continued
as such for some sir years. Howsver, in 1785 the founder
died and was succceded by his son, Edward. From 1790 to 1796
the titlie of the firm was Grayson and Fearon, and it may be
mersioned thaot accourding to the Liverpool Paper of November
17, 17,., TL’V launched a beautiful packet called the MARQUIS

OF KIiivaNE, Isr the Dubiinm vrade.  3he 15 a most complete
modul i o vosos 1, 13 upon © L.rze scale, and we are informed
uniiss Lvser convenienss with grent ologence in her

ACCOTIRNA T 51 oy, ,eLuQ]lT she was 135 tona register!

1
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Whan the Toppe snlipy WATT, of 564 tons, was built in
797, Tdiard gpenvs 1o have voen ca his own account, and
next year ne wes essocisted with Michael Humble in the con-
struction »# the very big c¢hlps CHARLTON and ASIA, each of
800 tons; for the Eost India Cowmpany.
Amongst other vessels Grayson launched was the

TIGLE, of 386 tons, in 1800, and next year the GENERAL
ABERCROMEY, of %28 tons.
{
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P waissen and Howson, In 4825 on the ilersey they
. L“‘x:o_uck) -Pﬁ,»uv-e _steamer BOLIVAR for szrvice abroad, and
2iobe SDLLOWALnE ear at Holyhead they piaced in the water
the pagcie steamer CITY OF CARLISLE, of 300 tons, the first
of the kind ever built in North Wales,

Charles Grayson died in 1836, aged 50 years, and for
a time his sons, Charles and John Dorlin Grayson, carried on
separate businesses, which they merged in 1341, and two years
later the firm was Grayson and Bannister, vut the latter
died in 13idy, aged 46, and in 1847 John Doriin Grayson
passed away at the esarly age of 4O years.

Im 4850 we Find Charles had gone into partnership
with Michoel Fumble, under the name of Humble & Grayson.
Humble's ancestor, another Michael, started the business in
1790 under the title of Smallshaw and Humble, as ship-
builders,. zut thoe iotter was on his own in 798 when he
built the CHiRLTON and ASIA Tfor the Rast India Company, and

G onmhle e Hurry in 1804, at the west side of the King's
thaw were she largest shipbuilders in Liverpool,
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'Cf:.\— ~ - w,—-,,,_-' o ewivwrights and i epprentices. They con-
St *’Lfe-:'iue** 1a=ee number of sailing craft, _and apparently
P - ¢ tcamer was the LUSITALO, built for

11 fiveat padale sT ) _ By O ced B
ownasrs in Portugal in 1822, Tnc'ereafj:er"tm.y Pro

i o + gtear » the coacsting raccs.
number cf stsaners Lo st became a partner

Soves a3 er Thomcs Milcres €
Soven years lat Huroy & lLillorests Vichael

ine Tima's title was Humble, Tin 1837, as
ey ied in 1830, eged 79, and i1 e =
Bumble, obi‘!—f;).gésileghe firm .'Built the largest paddl;gstgggler
Hume.6 ‘fJ,‘,;,*;"‘I;'Li;ferpOOl , named the LIVERPOOL: of 521;2 9; /
e 34,7150 tons burthen. Her length was &1&es

and.

regicter;



..5...

/ breadth 28.5; depth in hold 19.3, with engines of Lihhip,
She wag built for Sir John Tobin at a cost of £145,0060 T“u he
sold hepr to the Transatiantic Conpany and she ran betie
Liverpool and New York for a, couple of' years, whcn she was
purchaﬂﬂﬂ bé ihc Peninsular & Oricintal Company.
; “By-the-way, in 1835 Jlichael Humble, Jjun., married

Bridaost ' Tob i1, daughter of mhonas Tobin, so she was a niece of
Sir Jolhn. ~ ;William Hurry, who had retired from the firm some
years prevronsly, died in 1849 at the age of 77.

©¥7n 1853 Humble & Grayson obtained thc contract for
flttlng out *he .ship SHOOTING STAR with gaslignt.

Ev1dently in 1859 Humble retired and went to live in
Denbighshire; when the firm became Charles & Henry Grayson; the
latter was Henry Holdridge Grayson, son of John Dorlin.

Charvles retired atout 1870, but it was not until
four years later Enat the title was altered to Henry & Charles
Grayscly; the latter being the son of Charles.

Many of the old steamers, when they became wncuit-
Tor the trade in which they wers employed, were converted
into sailing vgssels, and in 1881 Graysons securcd the contract
for rcucving the machinery and boilers from theceiebrated irqQn
screw ghteamer GRLAT BRITAIN, cof 3%,LCO tons, and rigging her as
a ‘'"'ship®. Shc had been built in D!l" ;01 in 1843. ,

Groeycon's eventuvaily tecame a limited company under
the title of M. & C. Grgyson, Ltd., and about 1901 they formed
the Guorston, Shipbuilding & Dryduck Company at Garston, where ,
they loafiched some 120 steel vessels, but shipbuilding there
was given up 1n 1922,

Going back to 1907, in that year Grayson's further
extended their operations by teking over the shiprepairing
business ;of W.H. Potter & Company, also their works at Queen's
Dock. pottcrg who came from Hull, served his apprenticeship
with Humble & li.lcrest, and in 1350 started in business as a
shipwright and was under the name of Mills & Potter in 18“3,
while tH0 years later Poiter was a partner in the firm of
T.Il, Muckay & Company, but in 1860 W.H, Potter & Corpany was
thi: stvle <f the coacern at Raffin Street,and in 1563 they
lbviij\d thair first vessel, tas EDFORSHLP an 1rc1 shiip of
1, A00 tana; qlrﬂbugh sr Pobteps tiuilt some 170 snirs ocnd

st@n,
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3 1ncluding the L-masitzd stecl bargue WANJLRFR, of
2,7 ) tons ﬁ\JC Temcus by our sallor Pust Loureate, Joh
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Mog . fioid, Their yard ‘wos given up in 18¢S4, while Pofter
di#u in 19 0 thu age -of 77. '

Gﬂavuon s next expsnsion took place in 1911 when
the fire of {lover Clayton & Cumpany, with their drydocks at

Bi-l: % ¢, ~:me under their conorol.



and son of Robert then carried on the
when Joseph Royle joined and. tho I‘irn.i gusiness until 1850,
ggeroggg-%%ing Several wooden vessels -on the Lj verpool smg

y vhed & lease of land, in 1653, for a now yard at
Birkenhead, and on retirement of Royle in 1857 the o b
George R, BGlover dC . pecame
T e an Oe In 1863, they completed their first

N ship, and in 1870 built the iron screw steamer "St,ILoui s"
1800 tons « the first to fly the Dominion Iine flage Three
gears later tl:le ad joining yard and drydocks belonging to We Ae
layton came into the business, which was now known as Clover
Clayton & Co. The first trace of Clayton appears in 1843,
when he was associated with Russell as Russell and Clayton, at
Blundell Street, Liverpool Jnfortunately his partnef Wilton
Jood Russell (previously connccted with Robert Russell and
Sons of Birkenhead) died December 1842, aged 36, The firm then
changed its name to W,.,A.Claytor and Co, and took a lease of
land at Birkenhead where thoy coustructed a drydocke For
several yoears they traded as Clayton and M!'Keverigan, and then
as Blayton Bayley and Co., finally becoming the Woodside Graving
Dock Co, In 1875 the new firm of Clover Clayton and Coe lost
their shipbullding yards owing to land being required by the
railway company for a new station, but the drydocks wergl
retainedq In 1868 George Rcobert, junilor, and Matthegd dgggr
became partners, while theilr fatlier retired in 1870 a

X etired in 1879,
tn 1681 Claﬁgg gz:angtttgo end of the Grayson extenslons,
as in 1918 David Rollo and Sons, ongineers, of Szjlndhiéllisswzge,
taken over, David Rollo first appears 1n 1the ?lr?;ﬁeo?im
an engineor in 1862, and in 1635 was = par tner in

: : ~3ing inbc business on his om
of James Jack Rollo and Co, _3ing 1n later to be David
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:ggiﬂoln:nénsigi? - DaTheso )if‘.'t‘.)ﬁ.‘C sts werc merged .;jl’-l 1.358 as
3 ayson, Rollo and Clover Drydocks_Ltd., Ship-repGa;StO;l ond
ajndr yengn!..neera with yards at Sandhills, ngping{ O an,
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being the sixth, seventh cinnd eighth generation of the
family to be connected with the Firm, winich lhias now
been in existence about 186 years.

Another notable lonal shipbullding family
is the Laird family, Willlam *aird was a Liverpool
merchant In 1810, and in 1824 started an ironfoundry at
Birkenhead. It was his son Jchn, however, who became
the great shipbuilder, With a yard on the Wallasey
Pool they launched their rirst iron vessel, a lighter
on 30 tons and were soon bullding iron paddle steamers
Lairds are credited with having constructed the first
ibon vessels employed in Germany, India, China and U.S.A.
: Iiverpool had bullt a number of naval ships during the’
latter half of the 18th csntury, the last being HelieSe.
HAVANNAHE in 1811, but it was Lairds who secured the

first order thereartor,; i.c. H.M.S,DOVER, 224 tons, in
1839, said to have boon the first iron vebsel built for
H.li. services, Vinen 11.M.S, GUADELOUPE was launched

in 1342, he was the fortvsecond vessel launched from
Lairds, Three years later thsy bullt H.M. Frigate
BIRKENHEAD, 1400 tons, tlex wrack off the Cape of Good
Hope 1in 1852 stonds oubt in British history as an eple
story od courage and digcinline, Tn 1852, Lairds
took over Verncals yard =t %he TCinrle, Liverpool, and
thus were launching vossols on hoth sides of the river.
Tr. the IOllOWLHb raar they Loased land for a new yard at
Wocdaide, and in 1883 took cver Thomas Vilson's yard at
Bl¢LUﬂJG&d. Thres venrs latcr they gave up thelr site
at wailasey Pool; traniferred their activitices to both
banks of the Morsoy and about that period commenced
coneg tructing machinery for theirstoamers, Jom Laird

was a uuronb huvocate of decks on hoth sides of the Merse

being under one cortrol, vhich resulted in formation of
the Morﬂev Docks qn& ”arbour Loard in 1833, Three years.
later Lic V“c’nJ Divironkeadls first M.P, and ha.ded over

the business to his soms, the firm becoming William and
John Laird, when rchey hnilt £ wooden screw vessel of
about 1,000 tons (Yurd We.290) euglilned by Fawcott Prestor
and Co. ' She becorw motopious ac the ucnﬁ sierate armed
reider ALABAMA, which cost Britein some millions of punds
compensatione By 1964 the Tirm had pecome Lalrd
Brothors, and in thoe following yoar +they completed the
lronclad H.MN.S. 3“ﬁ9u;“ﬂ, 3380 wongy 1350 hor se=power,
Tho firm cf Curmols wa ‘otded in 1337, and in 1903
_m¢gnmated with Lal; 4 and at the samc time took over
Ll "parmere Bay Developriant Co. which was founded by
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John Jones, a Liverpoo, engineer and boiler maker, in 1855,

The firm beccame John Jones and Son and about 1880 cormenced

building ships ot the Brunswick Dock, and in 1899 moved over

to Tranmoeryv, *tuking the name of the Tranmere Bacy Development

Coe They built some 300 vessels,. They were the last

shipbuilders to have a yard on the Liverpool side of the Mersey,
Lairds, during their long careei, have corpleted

over 1,000 vessels for Royal Navy and merchant navy, thus.

establishing a great reputation,

One of the most respected Liverpool family names is-
that of Royden, The first Thomas Royden commecnced apprenticeg
ship with Charles Grayson in 1808, completed the last two
years of same with Melling and Watson, He then opened a yard-
at Baffin Street, trading as Woyden and Ward, shipwrights, .
Five years later they built their first vessel, a wooden-

schooner RYDLAND CASTLE, 83 tons, In 1824 James Ward re=

tired, and Royden continued the business, With so ruch

timber, tar, Pitch etce lying chout, snlhyard firos were not
uncomrion on those daysy and in 1825 a fire starced in Roydenrs
yard, destrt‘mﬁnD a2 nearlyscompletcd vesssi aud one other in,
framee It then spread to John Wilson! sad101n1ng vard, and ..

to Clark. and Alvkson!s, oventually reachiing Dawson and = .
Peareon'!s promises, in cach of mhlcn various ships were being
construc ted ond the damage thus proved exiensivee  From

1828 to 183 tho firm was styled Thomas Royden and Coe John
Watson then became a cartner. Then it again became Thomas Royden
and eventuslly ire founder?!s sons, Thomas Bland Royden and
Joseph Royden joined ths firm, which became Thomas Royden and
Sons, Up tc 1862, wcoden vessels were built, the largest
being the ANNE ROYDEN, 1175 tons. In 1863 iron was used and
four years later they launched the National liner FRANCE,

3572 tons. Thomas Royden died 1868, at 76 years of age.

In 1881 they built the steamer nPTSTIDES, 1563 tons, their

first steel ship, and continued in the business until 1893

when they completed their 263ra vessel, the barque

PRINCE ROBERT, ana the yard was ngen UPa Tho¢r building -

rate had avaraged four vesss. a year, Thomas 3land Royden

was llayor cf Liverpool in 1878=0 gnd in 1905 a haronetcy was
conforred unoan him, He died 1917, at thoe ddVdeGd ago of

86 years..
John Wilson commenced shipbuilding at
Cornhil. I:vsrpcol in 1807, and four years later bullt the .
frl"a+° hﬁ\ﬂ“wd_, 949 tons, which gave him the name of
Frlgate denn Tis sons William and Thoras becamo partnerse.
John died 1335 at 64 vears of agee. The Wilson firm built
salling shipa snd mesny of the early steamers, and in 1836



they launched the wdoden paddle steamer ROYAL ViiLLIAM for

the Dublin Company, 403 tohs with enzinss of 276 hepe ITOI
fawcett, Preston and Co., She made history in 1838, while
under charter by the Tpransetlantic Coc., 2ailing frorn the
Horsey on 5th July ~. the first steamer to cross fron

liverpool to New York - making the pessage in 19 dayse This
was two years before the Cunadder BRITLN'I4 made her malden
Vojagse .  In 1840 Wilsons launched the paddle steamearier
UNITED STATES, 1400 tons, for the american trade, but sho

"as purchased by the P. & O, Line and re-namesd ORIENTALe

-IWo years later: Thomas Viilson (whose brother {iliian had
Just died) built the wooden paddler HIIDOSTAN, 2000 tons, and
in 1843 the BENTINCK a similar vessel, Both for the P. & Oe
Hls yard was then at the ‘North shore, but in 1850 he transe
érred his operaticns to pirkenhead, where ¢ huilt sore iron
Véssels, In 1853, however, Vlilson gave up business and
died in 1885, aged 72,

Thoras Vernon started as a hoiler mzker in 1829 at
Ste Amne Street, and in 184%L the firm becare Thorias Vernon and
Coe: iron sh:inptudlders ste, on the Horth Shore whers, in 18495,
they launched the patdle stearici NINROD, 7CL tens, for the
Ir:':éh trade, being the 30th iron vessel tiacy had constructede
The firm also had a yard at Dingle which they transferred to
Lairds in 1852, but continued building at DBrunswick Docke
Tomas Vernon died in 1861 aged 63, and his son John carried
O0n, opening a yard four years later at Seacombe, but ten years
later they were out of the business,

Robert and John Evans, still in existence as shipe
repairers etc., wore once well=-known shipbuilders, founded
about 184C, first as shipwrights and then as boatbuilders etc.
Their first vessel was launched about 1857, arnd within a year
Or two they were turning out iron ships, They have to thelr
credit some of the finest sailers which ever 1ot the lersey,
In addition tc stesmors, fThe 13%nd end last craft to be
launclied was the 4-mast barque LYITONZ 2351 tons, in 1895 |

The Liverpocl Shipbuillding Co!:z career started
in 1841 vy Henry Jordan as a shipuwrignte O8ix years later they
becare Tucker and Jordan with a2 yard at Baifin Strect, and
about 1819 Jordan and Finlayas -rn LS50 they bullt the schooner
EXCELSICR, a compsite vessocl of iron and wocd, under a system
Imown as Jordan's patent. Other and larger vessels of this
Construction followed. Jorda' and Getty was thelr title in
1853, ana two years later they becaric Jones Getty and Cos,
%hile from 1857 Josiah Jonos Junior continued the business
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About the same time William Quiggin, who served his time
under Vernon and had been manager for Cram, the Choster shipe
buildei, became manager and draughtsman for Joneg; amd in

1860 the firm became Jones Quigsin ané Go. They are said

tc have been the first to build steel vessels herey, ile0e

the DOIIITILIA, 266 tons, in 1863, and they launched numerous

Swif't steel paddle steamers for blockade-running purposes in

the carly !sixties., With a éapital of £300,000 they

fomed the Liverpool Shipbuilding Co. in 1865, in February
of that year launching no less than 5 stesmers on one tide.
in 871 their largest vessel was built, the National liner
EGEPT, 476° tons, but about 1875 they disctontinued
buiiling, finaily going out of business about 1880
VUillitor Quip,in died at Blundellsands in 1892, aged 7l
Altogsther, the firm had built over 150 ships and steamers.
slorte~shead and “ayes, who built the first steamer
at Livsrnool, should be mentioncde They started at the

Hew Quay in 1803 as lottershead end Hutchinson, but ten
year:z latler LEdwa-d Hutchinson died, aged 55, and Ilotters-
hea? then toclkr in Christopher Hayes as partner, the firm
hecaiing iotter shead and Hayes, with a yard on the South
Sheree  In July 1816 ther completed the wooden paddler

'XL1L.CESS CEARLOTTE for the Liverpool-Eastham ferry service,
Full cdctails of this vessel are not available but cone
tenporaery newspapers stated that she had a flush deck apart
Trori her paddles and boiler, with a very tall thin®unnel, as
tall as her single mast, The firm built nunerous other
ferry craft and larger paddle steamers for the coastal
tradc, in addition to sailing craft. In 1827, Hayes! son
Chri:tlcplier joined the firm, then styled Mottershead, Hayes
an< Son, uand in 1834 John liottershead senior died, aged 694
in the foullowing year Hayes retired, and John Iottershead,
sOrr O i founder, carried on on his own account until 1843,
when hne rotirede

Thers have been more than 100 firms, large and
s:odl, uilding ships on the Lancashire and Cheshire sides
of t3 lcersey at one tine or another, but today only one
reriaiis, l1.0. GCammel Laird & Co., at Birkenheads
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